
1

City of Kelowna
Public Hearing

AGENDA

Tuesday, February 26, 2013

6:00 pm

Council Chamber

City Hall, 1435 Water Street

Pages

1. Call to Order

THE CHAIR WILL CALL THE HEARING TO ORDER:

1. (a) The purpose of this Hearing is to consider certain bylaws which, if adopted, shall

amend Kelowna 2030 - Official Community Plan Bylaw No. 10500 and Zoning Bylaw

No. 8000.

(b) All persons who believe that their interest in property is affected by the proposed

bylaws shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity to be heard or to present written

submissions respecting matters contained in the bylaws that are the subject of this

hearing.

(c) All information, correspondence, petitions or reports that have been received

concerning the subject bylaws have been made available to the public. The

correspondence and petitions received after February 12, 2013 (date of notification)

are available for inspection during the course of this hearing and are located on the

information table in the foyer of the Council Chamber.

(d) Council debate on the proposed bylaws is scheduled to take place during the

Regular Council meeting after the conclusion of this Hearing. It should be noted,

however, that for some items a final decision may not be able to be reached tonight.



2

(e) It must be emphasized that Council will not receive any representation from the

applicant or members of the public after conclusion of this Public Hearing.

2. Notification of Meeting

The City Clerk will provide information as to how the Hearing was publicized.

3. The Mayor will provide comment on procedures for each bylaw submission.

4. Individual Bylaw Submissions

4.1 Bylaw No. 10796 - Text Amendment Application No. TA12-0013 - Text
Amendment to Zoning Bylaw for various section updates

4 - 9

The City of Kelowna is propsoing various text amendments to the City of

Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 are proposed as follows: 1. To revise the

interpretation of building height and provide corresponding illustrations; 2. To

amend the criteria by which dormers are considered the main roof for the

purpose of protecting neighbours privacy and minimizing the impact of the

dormer height; 3. To amend the permitted height for accessory structures in A1-

Agriculture and RR1-Rural Residential zones; 4. To update references from the

's' or 'c' zoning designations in the landscape section of the Zoning Bylaw to

reflect recent changes to secondary suites; 5. To distinguish the parking

regulations for secondary suites and carriage houses.

4.2 Bylaw No. 10801 - Text Amendment Application No. TA12-0010 - 1310-1352
Water Street

10 - 31

The applicant is proposing to add 'breweries and distilleries, minor' as a

permitted secondary use within the C8 - Convention Hotel Commercial Zone.

4.3 Bylaw No. 10802 - Rezoning Application No. Z12-0071 - 1789 KLO Road 32 - 38

The applicant is proposing to rezone the subject property from the C2 -

Neighbourhood Commercial zone to the C2rls - Neighbourhood Commercial

(Retail Liquor Sales) zone to facilitate a retail liquor store in an existing

commercial unit.

5. Termination

6. Procedures On Each Bylaw Submission

(a) Brief description of the application by City Staff (Land Use Management or Policy

and Planning Department).



3

(b) The Chairman will request that the City Clerk indicate all information,

correspondence, petitions or reports received for the record.

(c) The applicant is requested to make representation to Council regarding the project

and is encouraged to limit their presentation to 15 minutes. 

(d) The Chairman will call for representation from the public in attendance.

(i) The microphone at the podium has been provided for any person(s) wishing to make

representation to the meeting.

(ii) The Chair will recognize ONLY speakers at podium.

(iii) Speakers are encouraged to limit their remarks to 5 minutes. However, if they have

additional information they may address Council again after all other members of the

public have been heard a first time.

 (e) Once the public has had an opportunity to comment, the applicant is given an

opportunity to respond to any questions raised. The applicant is requested to keep the

response to a total of 10 minutes maximum. 

(f) Questions of staff by members of Council must be asked before the Public Hearing

is closed and not during debate of the bylaw at the Regular Meeting, unless for

clarification.

(g) Final calls for representation (Ask three times). Unless Council directs that the

public hearing on the bylaw in question be adjourned (held open), the chairman shall

state to the gallery that the public hearing on that bylaw is closed.

Note: Any applicant or member of the public may use visual aids (eg. photographs,

sketches, slideshows, etc.) to assist in their presentation or questions. The computer

station and ELMO document camera at the public podium are available. Please ask

staff for assistance prior to your item if required.



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: January 3, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-04 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: TA12-0013 Applicant:  City of Kelowna (B. Decloux) 

Subject: Text Amendment to Zoning Bylaw for various section updates  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment No. TA12-0013 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000 as outlined in Schedule ‘A’ attached to the Report of the Land Use Management Department 
dated January 3, 2013, be considered by Council;  
 
AND THAT the Text Amendment No. TA12-0013 bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for 
further consideration.  

2.0 Purpose  

Various text amendments to the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 are proposed as follows:  
      1. To revise the interpretation of building height and provide corresponding illustrations; 
      2. To amend the criteria by which dormers are considered the main roof for the purpose of  
          protecting neighbours privacy and minimizing the impact of the dormer height; 
      3. To amend the permitted height for accessory structures in A1-Agriculture and RR1- Rural      
           residential zones; 
      4. To update references from the ‘s’ to ‘c’ zoning designations in the landscape section of 
           the Zoning Bylaw to reflect recent changes to secondary suites; 
      5. To distinguish the parking regulations for secondary suites and carriage houses. 

3.0 Land Use Management  

Land Use Management is proposing the following amendments to the City of Kelowna Zoning 
Bylaw No. 8000 to provide further clarity on development regulations, allowable uses and 
corresponding development regulations. These changes are explained in further detail below with 
the exact wording proposed on Schedule “A” as attached. The objectives are: 

 To remove references to the ‘s’ zone;  

 To improve definition clarity for terms that are routinely used when interpreting 
development regulations; 

 To evaluate the built form of accessory structures (now carriage houses) as per SR151852 
and 174898 and review the corresponding development regulations to ensure they are 
sensitively integrated into existing neighborhoods.   

4



TA12-0013 – Page 2 

 
 

Notably, Council directed Staff to consider the size, height, and setbacks of accessory structures 
in response to structures containing a secondary suite that have been viewed as not sensitively 
integrating into an established urban neighbourhood. Staff have researched other communities 
and evaluated the City of Kelowna requirements against those of other municipalities and it was 
determined that the size of secondary suites and carriage houses is consistent with other 
jurisdictions.  Further, as the maximum size requirement is derived from the BC building code 
regulations, the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw ensure that health and safety requirements are 
achievable. The City of Kelowna setback requirements are among the most stringent of all 
municipalities reviewed, and imposing more restrictive development regulations could be an 
impediment to parcels developing with this needed housing form. The minimum required setback 
assists in fire protection of the carriage house and neighbouring buildings.  Additionally, the 
current regulations also seek to address privacy of the direct neighbours.   
 
However, some minor changes to the interpretation of building height are being proposed. The 
overall permitted height of an accessory building of 4.5m is not being changed, however revised 
definitions and clarifying illustrations are proposed. Specifically, a definition for the roof ‘mid-
point’ is proposed as the point halfway between the roof peak and the top of the supporting wall 
to provide additional clarification on the built form and building height. Through this 
amendment, it is anticipated that this will end the manipulation of eave length and roof pitches 
to gain additional height (which has the most imposing impact on sensitive integration). Further, 
sample illustrations of building forms with a corresponding height interpretation will provide 
additional clarity. It is anticipated that these changes will ensure that carriage house and 
accessory buildings will meet the spirit of the intended height without artificially changing the 
built form to gain height through altered roof designs.    
 
In summary, after a thorough review of other municipalities and accessory development 
regulations, the City of Kelowna has a more conservative approach to the built form than other 
communities.  These amendments are considered modest in nature, and do not propose changes 
to allowable size of either a secondary suite or carriage house, as this has been determined to be 
a very desirable habitable size as demanded by the market and varying demographic housing 
needs.  The amendments are focused on ensuring that building height and corresponding roof 
pitches cannot be altered to gain additional height that has been seen to be the largest concern 
of introducing these forms of buildings into an established neighbourhood.     

4.0 Proposal 

Proposed amendments are discussed in detail below, however the exact wording changes are 
noted in Schedule ‘A’. 

1. Amendment to “Height” definitions:  

The height definition has been simplified and a definition for ‘mid-point’ is proposed. For 
further clarification, Diagram 2.1 is proposed to provide graphic illustration of height 
determination for various roof types to interpret allowable building height.  
 
2. Changes to dormer regulations: 

The current dormer regulations consider the peak of a dormer the highest point of a roof 
if they exceed 50% of the horizontal width of the building elevation on which they are 
located. In past development examples, this regulation has been manipulated to allow for 
expanded floor space within the upper ½ storey of carriage houses.   
 

5



TA12-0013 – Page 3 

 
 

The proposed changes limit the number of dormers per elevation and the size of each 
dormer. It is anticipated that this change will reduce the perceived height of carriage 
houses, and further protect the privacy of neighbouring properties.        
 
3. Revisions to accessory structure height in A1-Agriculture and RR1- Rural Residential 

zones: 

It was noted that the allowable height for accessory buildings and carriage houses for the 
A1-Agriculture and RR1-Rural Residential zones was higher than permitted for a single 
family dwelling. This text amendment proposes to reduce the allowable height to ensure 
that accessory buildings containing habitable space are secondary in height to the 
principal residence.  No changes are planned for the height of agricultural buildings which 
are currently permitted up to 16 meters in height.  
 
4. Amendments of ‘s’ to ‘c’ in section 7: 

Housekeeping updates to complete the secondary suite changes from ‘s’ to ‘c’ zoning 
designations as approved by Council in September 2012.  

5. Clarify parking regulations for secondary suites and carriage houses: 

The parking regulations for secondary suites and carriage houses were originally combined 
in Table 8.1 of the Zoning Bylaw 8000. For ease of interpretation by both Staff and the 
public, parking regulations for each of these uses is being separated.  

5.0 Current Development Policies   

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Policy .2 Compact Urban Form. Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of 
existing infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns. This will 
be done by increasing densities (approximately 75 - 100 people and/or jobs per ha located 
within a 400 metre walking distance of transit stops is required to support the level of 
transit service) through development, conversion, and re-development within Urban 
Centres (see Map 5.3) in particular and existing areas as per the provisions of the 
Generalized Future Land Use Map 4.1.1 

5.2 Technical Comments  

5.3 Building & Permitting Department 

The only issue our department has is with the depiction of the parapet height as shown on 
the sketch. The other issue is that an allowance for firewalls as defined in the building 
code is exempt from the height calculations. Height diagram has been adjusted to reflect 
this comment.  Section 6.6.1 is being amended to include firewalls. 

5.4 Development Engineering Branch 

Comments received pertained to reducing the required parking for carriage houses, 
which is no longer being contemplated in this report. 

 

 

                                                
1
 Official community plan Objective 5.2 Community Sustainability 

6



TA12-0013 – Page 4 

 
 

5.5 Ministry of Transportation and Infrastructure 

The Ministry has no objections or concerns regarding the proposed amendments with 
respect to carriage houses.   File No. 2012-05674 

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:        Danielle Noble, Manager, Urban Land Use Management 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community Sustainability 

 

Attachments:   

Schedule ‘A’ 
Diagram 2.1 – Height Interpretation 

 

7



8



9



REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: January 18, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-04 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (PMc) 

Application: TA12-0010 Owner: 
Delta Hotels No. 48 Holdings 
Ltd. 

Address: 1310-1352 Water St. Applicant: 
Delta Hotels No. 48 Holdings 
Ltd. 

Subject: Text Amendment 

Existing OCP Designation: Commercial 

Existing Zone: C8 – Convention Hotel Commercial 

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Zoning Bylaw Text Amendment No. TA12-0010 to amend City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 
8000, as outlined in Schedule ‘A’ of the report of the Land Use Management Department dated 
January 18, 2013 be considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Text Amendment Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further 
consideration. 

2.0 Purpose  

To add ‘breweries and distilleries, minor’ as a permitted secondary use within the C8 – 
Convention Hotel Commercial zone. 

3.0 Land Use Management 

The proposed addition of ‘breweries and distilleries, minor’ as a secondary use to the C8 – 
Convention Hotel Commercial zone is considered a modest change to the zone overall.  The 
addition of this use was initiated by the applicant (Delta Hotels No. 48 Ltd.) to accommodate a 
prospective tenant within a building that is currently zoned C8 – Convention Hotel Commercial.  
 
The location of the craft brewery and tasting room on the Delta Grand Okanagan Resort site will 
provide pedestrians with a destination beer tasting experience as an alternative to wine tasting, 
and provide an additional range of activities for tourists utilizing downtown facilities and the 
boardwalk along Okanagan Lake. 
 
Notably, provincial liquor licensing regulation will control the operation of the craft brewery. 

 

10



TA12-0010 – Page 2 

 
 

4.0 Proposal/Background 

The applicant wishes to add ‘breweries and distilleries, minor’ as a permitted secondary use 
within the C8 – Convention Hotel Commercial zone in order that a ground level commercial 
tenant space, formerly used as a restaurant, can be developed into a craft brewery and tasting 
room.  The proposed tenant for this space is a local Kelowna brewery that is looking at creating a 
craft brewery on the site to complement their north-end brewery location.  The tasting areas will 
not only provide tasting of product produced in the craft brewery, but also provide education for 
beer and food pairings with food supplied by the Delta Grand Okanagan Resort.  The entire 
facility will be marketed as a Beer Institute to educate consumers to taste, learn about beer 
products, as well as the art of craft brewing. 
 
In February 2010, the “breweries and distilleries, major” and “breweries and distilleries, minor” 
use categories were added to Zoning bylaw 8000.  That amendment added the ‘breweries and 
distilleries, minor’ use as permitted secondary use to the I2 – General Industrial, I3 – Heavy 
Industrial, I4 - Central Industrial zones, as well as the C4 – Urban Centre Commercial and the C7 – 
Central Business Commercial zones.  The minor use category limits maximum manufacturing area 
to 275 m². 
 
The only site in Kelowna which is zoned the “C8 – Convention Hotel Commercial” zone is the 
Delta Grand Okanagan Resort.  Therefore, this proposed text amendment will only affect the 
Delta Grand Okanagan Resort development, which is located within the City Centre Urban Town 
Centre. 
 

5.0 Current Development Policies  

5.1 Kelowna Official Community Plan (OCP) 

Development Process Policies: 
 
Complete Suburbs:  Support a mix of uses within Kelowna’s suburbs, in accordance with 
‘Smart Growth’ principles to ensure complete communities1. 
 
Compact Urban Form:  Develop a compact urban form that maximizes the use of existing 
infrastructure and contributes to energy efficient settlement patterns2.   

Economic Development Policies: 
 
Sustainable Prosperity:  Assign priority to supporting the retention, enhancement and 
expansion of existing businesses and post secondary institutions and the attraction of new 
businesses and investment identified as bringing sustainable prosperity to Kelowna3. 
 

6.0 Technical Comments 

The file was circulated to Policy and Planning Department and the RCMP.  They responded they 
had no concerns. 

7.0 Application Chronology  

                                                
1
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.2, Chapter 5 page 5.2 

2 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 5.3, Chapter 5 page 5.3 
3
 City of Kelowna Official Community Plan, Objective 8.1, Chapter 8 page 8.1 

11



TA12-0010 – Page 3 

 
 

Date of Application Received:  October 5, 2012 
 

Report prepared by: 

 
     
Paul McVey, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:    Todd Cashin, Manager, Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion  Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager,  
     Community Sustainability 
 
 

Attachments: 

Schedule ‘A’ – Summary of Proposed Text Amendments 
Applicants Rationale document  
 

12



Schedule “A” – Text Amendment No. TA12-0010 
 

Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 
No. Section Existing Text Proposed Text 

1 

14.8.3 The secondary uses in this zone are: 
(a) agriculture, urban 
(b) amusement arcades, minor 
(c) apartment hotel 
(d) care centres, major 
(e) food primary establishment 
(f) gaming facilities 
(g) liquor primary establishment, major 
(C8lp only) 
(h) liquor primary establishment, minor 
(i) offices 
(j) personal service establishments 
(k) retail stores, convenience 
(l) retail stores, general  

The secondary uses in this zone are: 
(a) agriculture, urban 
(b) amusement arcades, minor 
(c) apartment hotel 
(d) care centres, major 
(e) breweries and distilleries, minor 
(f) food primary establishment 
(g) gaming facilities 
(h) liquor primary establishment, major (C8lp 
only) 
(i) liquor primary establishment, minor 
(j) offices 
(k) personal service establishments 
(l) retail stores, convenience 
(m) retail stores, general  

    
    

 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



 

 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 
 
 
 

Date: January 16, 2013 

RIM No. 1250-30 

To: City Manager 

From: Land Use Management, Community Sustainability (BD) 

Application: Z12-0071 Owner: 

 
0796838 BC Ltd., BC0796838 
 

Address: 1789 KLO Road Applicant: Vinosity Ventures Inc. 

Subject: Rezoning Application  

Existing OCP Designation: Commercial 

Existing Zone: C2- Neighbourhood Commercial 

Proposed Zone: C2rls – Neighbourhood Commercial (Retail Liquor Sales)  

 

1.0 Recommendation 

THAT Rezoning Application No. Z12-0071 to amend the City of Kelowna Zoning Bylaw No. 8000 by 
changing the zoning classification of Strata Lot 2, D.L. 131, ODYD, Strata Plan EPS1034, together 
with an interest in the common property in proportion to the unit entitlement of the Strata Lot 
as shown on Form V, located on 1789 KLO Road, Kelowna, BC, from the C2- Neighbourhood 
Commercial zone to the C2rls – Neighbourhood Commercial (Retail Liquor Sales) zone, be 
considered by Council; 
 
AND THAT the Zone Amending Bylaw be forwarded to a Public Hearing for further consideration. 

2.0 Purpose 

The applicant is proposing to rezone the subject property from the C2 – Neighbourhood 
Commercial zone to the C2rls– Neighbourhood Commercial (Retail Liquor Sales) to facilitate a 
retail liquor store in an existing commercial unit on the subject property.  

3.0 Land Use Management  

Council Policy 359 provides some guidance related to the location of liquor stores that aim to 
limit potential land use conflicts and community disturbance issues related to liquor stores and 
liquor primary establishments.  In addition, the Liquor Control & Licensing Branch (LCLB) requires 
that any new or relocated private liquor stores must be a minimum of 1km from another private 
liquor store (location of government liquor stores excluded). The proposed liquor store relocation 

32



Z12-0071 – Page 2 

 
 

 

complies with these policies given that the closest private liquor store is located at Liquids Liquor 
Store 2.4 km away. 

The Land Use Management Department recommends that the rezoning be supported given that 
the newly developed site meets parking requirements, no traffic concerns were identified, and 
no negative impacts from the relocation are anticipated.   

4.0 Proposal 

4.1 Project Description 

The applicant is proposing to relocate an existing private liquor store to the subject property.  A 
two storey commercial building is being constructed on the site which initially anticipated   
commercial/office uses for both floors. Two one-bedroom residential units are located on the 
second floor.   

“The Crossings Liquor Store” is proposed in the lower southwest corner of the building occupying 
28% of the gross floor area confirming the use as secondary to other principal uses.  The Zoning 
Bylaw No. 8000, requires a rezoning to add the “rls” (Retail Liquor Sales) designation to the 
existing zone to permit liquor stores. 

4.2 Site Context 

The subject property is located on the corner of K.L.0. Road and Benvoulin Road in Pandosy – KLO 
sector of Kelowna. The surrounding properties are zoned as follows: 

Direction Zone 

North C10 – Service Commercial  
A1 – Agriculture 1 

West A1 – Agriculture 1  (residential properties) 

East A1 – Agriculture 1 (farm use) 

South A1 – Agriculture 1 (residential properties and farm use across Benvoulin)  

 
  

33



Z12-0071 – Page 3 

 
 

 

4.3 Subject Property Map: 1789 KLO Road 

 
 
 

 

4.4  Zoning Analysis Table   

The proposed application meets the requirements of C2rls– Neighbourhood Commercial (Retail 
Liquor Sales) zone as follows:   

Zoning Analysis Table 

CRITERIA 
C2RLS ZONE 

REQUIREMENTS 
PROPOSAL 

Existing Lot/Subdivision Regulations 

Lot Area 2,481.8m2 /0.2481ha. 
Minimum:  1500 m² 
Maximum:  1.0 ha. 

Lot Width Average ~ 46 m 40 m 

Lot Depth 47.438 m 30 m 

Development Regulations 
Size  No restriction 240.8m2 

Floor area Ratio  
(% of space proposed for 

 Retail Liquor Sales [RLS]) 
 

Total GFA: 
Commercial:  743.7 m2 and 
Residential: 121 m2  for a 
total: 864.7 m2 

Retail Liquor Sales: 
28% of total floor area 
32% of Commercial floor area 

Minimum Parking Requirements 
 For GFA greater than 200 m² 
3.0 per 100 m² GFA therefore 

total spaces required:   8  

32 spaces (19% small car) 
provided in total. 
  

8 spaces allocated to the 
RLS  

34



Z12-0071 – Page 4 

 
 

 

5.0   Current Development Policies   

As per Council Policy #359 (Liquor Licensing Policy & Procedures), the following considerations 
should be made for the location of liquor stores/retail liquor sales (RLS): 

 Continue to require new or relocated RLS establishments to apply for a rezoning 
application to allow for “Retail Liquor Sales” in applicable zones. 

 No Retail Liquor Sales shall be approved for (in conjunction with) Liquor Primary 
Establishments with person capacity that exceed 150 persons. 

 Any new or relocated Retail Liquor Sales establishment shall not be located within 300m 
of an existing Liquor Primary establishment with a capacity greater than 350 persons. 

6.0     Technical Comments   

6.1 Building & Permitting Department 

No comments. 

6.2 Development Engineering Department 

Development Engineering servicing requirements were dealt with as part of DP11-0064 for 
this commercial development. This rezoning to accommodate a licence retail store for 
liquor sales does not compromise any municipal services. 

6.3 RCMP 

The RCMP have no concerns or comments related to his application. 

7.0 Application Chronology   

Date of Application Received: December 13, 2012  

Report prepared by: 

     
Birte Decloux, Land Use Planner  
 
 

Reviewed by:       Todd Cashin, Manager, Land Use 
 

Approved for Inclusion:   Doug Gilchrist, Acting General Manager, Community Sustainability 

 

Attachments:   

Subject Property Map 
Site Plan 
Floor Plan 
 

35



36



37



38


	Agenda
	4.1 ta12-0013 (cms - format) -.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 TA12-0013 Dev Eng comments.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.1 Diagram 2.1.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 ta12-0010 rtc.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 TA12-0010 Schedule A.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.2 Rationale low res .pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 z12-0071 council report.pdf
	Back to Agenda

	4.3 Z12-0071 RTC Scans.pdf
	Back to Agenda


